THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA

SCHOOL REFORM COMMISSION

Office of Capital Programs

440 North Broad Street, 3rd Floor – Suite 371

Philadelphia, PA  19130

TELEPHONE: (215) 400-4730

Addendum No. 002
Subject: 
Guaranteed Energy Savings Act (GESA) Contract

Inclusive of Energy Efficient Building Upgrades

Location:  Northeast High School
1601 Cottman Avenue

Philadelphia, PA 19111

Saul High School

7100 Henry Ave.
Philadelphia, PA 19128

Strawberry Mansion High School
3133 Ridge Avenue
Philadelphia PA 19121
____________________________________________________________________________________
This Addendum, dated November 15, 2017, shall modify and become part of the RFP for the work of this project.  Any items not mentioned herein, or affected by, shall be performed strictly in accordance with the original documents.

Revise as indicated below or by attachment
1.1 Revisions to the RFP
1.1.1 Page 7 of the RFP in section "A. Project Parameters”, add new bullet point with the following: “The minimum overall projected annual energy savings (inclusive of all fuels consumed by the facilities) shall be 20% of the Year 1 energy use baseline. 
1.1.2 Page 13 of the RFP section “E. Conditions to be Maintained” bullet point five “Air Changes/Ventilation Requirements:” shall be removed and replaced with: “Air Changes/Ventilation Requirements:  Within code at all times, including the latest prevailing ASHRAE standards for fresh air ventilation.”
1.1.3 Page 22 of the RFP section “B-4 bullet point one “Scheduled preventative maintenance. Warranty work only;” shall be removed and replaced with the following: “Additional, required scheduled maintenance required for new and replacement equipment to maintain manufacturer warranties. Do not include optional, extended service contracts."
1.1.4 Page 26 Section Appendices delete line items “Organizational chart” and “Resume of key personnel” 
2.1 Supplemental Data
2.1.1 Additional utility data has been posted to the website under addendum #2 “ESCO Pilot Additional Utility Data 11.15.17”.
2.1.2 The contract language has been posted to the website under addendum #2 “ESCO Pilot - Form Agreement 11.15.17”.
3.1  
Proposer Questions
3.1.1 Improvement Priorities – the condition assessment report provided in the RFP has a list of capital projects with priorities assigned to them. Are these the priorities of the District or by the consultant? With limited funding and a long list of projects, can you provide some direction of where you would want the funding to go first (by School)?
· Proposers should determine the best possible investments based on their assessments.
3.1.2 Can you provide a list of major capital improvement projects over the last 5-10 years so we can understand what has changed and how our project might best serve those?
· Capital improvement projects are listed on the District’s website.

3.1.3 Please verify that the asbestos reports are current. 
· Furnished data is latest available.
3.1.4 Prequalification - It was recommended at the pre-bid meeting, at Saul School, to be on the prequalification list through the procurement webpage (which we have filed). There’s also a form in the Capital Programs site. Does this need to be filled out & approved as well, prior to proposal submission? 
· The procurement webpage is sufficient.
3.1.5 Design standards – Please forward any SDP design standards. 
· Design standards are currently under revision and will be reviewed with the successful proposer.

3.1.6 Building Automation System (BAS) standards – Is there is a standard design/spec for building automation that the District wishes to be considered as part of this project? An example project might be useful. 
· The District prefers a de-centralized control system approach providing local scheduling at the unitary level. 

3.1.7 Ventilation standards – Given the brevity of our visits and lack of equipment documentation, it seems difficult to guarantee any ventilation standards are being met. Having said that, it then becomes equally difficult to predict energy impacts because of this lack of information that might be used for baseline adjustments. Can the District recommend how to address this issue? 
· Proposers should evaluate each facility to determine site conditions.
3.1.8 On page 22 of RFP, Section B-4, can you clarify the first bullet of the items to be proposed? : Does this mean you want any preventative maintenance included in an extended warranty cost for 3 years (paid up front with equipment purchase)? • Scheduled preventative maintenance, warranty work only, no service contracts 
· Refer to 2.1.1. 
3.1.9 It appears that only PECO bills were provided. Can we obtain copies of bills/invoices from the electric supplier, natural gas supplier, PGW, and water/sewer departments to prepare more comprehensive energy and water balances and then optimize project savings for the District?
· Refer to 2.1.1.
3.1.10 Please provide current utility supply contract expiration dates and/or actual contracts.

· All current contracts expire at the end of the District’s fiscal year June 30, 2018. 
3.1.11 Please provide hours of operations for the following: • Classes (day) • Classes (evening) • Custodial • Gyms • Locker Rooms/Field Houses • Summer School • Basic HVAC schedules • Any other school / community activities
· Field houses, stadiums, and athletic fields  are not in scope at any location

· Basic HVAC schedule: 
· Cooling plant operation May 15th – September 15th, 
· Heating plant operation October 15th – April 15th. 
	
	Northeast HS 
	Saul HS
	Strawberry Mansion HS

	Normal School Year
	
	
	

	Classes (daytime)
	8:45AM - 3:09PM

M-F
	8:45AM - 3:09PM

M-F
	8:45AM - 3:09PM

M-F

	Classes (evening)
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours



	Custodial (normal school year)
	3:00PM-10:30PM M-F
	12:00PM-8:30PM M-F 
	3:00PM-10:30PM M-F

	Custodial (summer Jul-1 thru Sep-1)
	8:30AM-3:30PM M-F
	7:00AM-3:30PM M-F
	8:30AM-3:30PM M-F

	Gymnasium & Locker Rooms
	8:45AM - 3:09PM


	8:45AM-3:09PM
	8:45AM - 3:09PM



	Summer/Weekend Usage
	
	
	

	Gymnasium & Locker Rooms
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours
	7:30AM-4:00PM Sat Sept 23 - Jun 16

9:00AM-4:00PM Sat Dec 2 - Mar 10

9:30AM-12:00PM 

M-F Aug 7-31

	School
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours



	Community Usage
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours
	Within custodial hours




3.1.12 Appendix B (facility profile) shows the total area for Saul HS as 104,018 SF. However, the site assessment report shows additional area (74,316 SF) for Saul Annex and the Gym, this makes the total square footage for Saul 178,334 SF. TEN wants to verify whether the utility data provided for Saul HS includes the Annex and Gym, or should we expect separate utility data for these two buildings? 
· Furnished utility data includes Annex and Gym
3.1.13 For Saul HS and Saul Annex boiler plants, are there separate gas/fuel oil meters showing annual fuel used by each plant? 
· No only single gas meter

3.1.14 A plate and Frame heat exchanger was observed in Saul Annex mechanical room, is this in use?
· Yes, during cooling season.
3.1.15 Strawberry Mansion HS – During the first walk-through it was observed that all of the HV units in the attic mechanical room were turned off. Is there any schedule for these HV units? Are these units currently turned off manually? 
·       Units operate during heating season and are energized manually.
3.1.16 Is there any estimated count and size on existing steam traps at Strawberry Mansion HS and Northeast HS?
·       This information is not available. 
3.1.17 Is this procurement limited solely to the three (3) facilities identified within the RFP? Or, after an ESCO is selected, is the District planning to expand the project scope and procurement to then include additional schools/sites that are not currently identified by the RFP? If this procurement is limited solely to the three (3) facilities identified within this RFP, please confirm that other GESA type work for other District facilities would only be addressed under separate procurements and GESA RFPs. 
· Procurement is limited solely to the three (3) facilities identified within the RFP. Other GESA work for other District facilities would only be addressed under separate procurements and GESA RFPs. 

3.1.18 Please provide basic floor plans or fire evacuation plans for each facility.

· Basic floor plans are furnished within in the RFP.  
3.1.19 Please confirm Strawberry Mansion High School’s area is 249,000 Sq. Ft.
· Strawberry Mansion High School’s area is 249,000 Sq. Ft
3.1.20 Please provide square footage for Leslie Pinckney Hill Elementary School (L. P. Hill). 
· LP Hill’s area is 71,920 Sq. Ft
3.1.21 From the initial field visit it appeared that both Leslie Pinckney and Strawberry Mansion HS were served by the same boiler plant and same electric meter. Please confirm if this assertion is correct. a) If this is correct, please provide an apportionment % to be factored to the baseline gas, oil and electric utilities contained in the RFP so that all ESCOs can establish accurate utility baselines for Strawberry Mansion HS. 
· Both L.P. Hill and Strawberry Mansion HS are served by the same boiler plant and same electric meter. No data is available for usage of individual schools. 

3.1.22 For the second site inspections scheduled for October 27th, and November 7th, 2017 please provide three (3) District escorts for our auditing team; one escort for our lighting auditor, and two escorts for Mechanical/HVAC teams so we could have two separate Mech/HVAC teams auditing simultaneously. 
· Second site inspections scheduled during school closure and consultant escorts are not required.

3.1.23 Please confirm that the utilization of Union labor / contractors is required on this project. 
· Utilization of union labor is required on this project.
3.1.24 Does the District currently participate in any Demand Response programs? a) If so, which programs? 
· Not currently.
3.1.25 Please provide mechanical equipment schedules indicating fan and pump motor sizes, all three (3) sites 
· This information is not available for Northeast and Strawberry Mansion High Schools. The material for the Saul School is available in addendum #1 posted on our website.
3.1.26 Please provide occupancy hours for the field house(s) at the Northeast HS 
· The field house is not part of the project scope.
3.1.27 RFP states the project will be paid for with capital funds. Are there any limits on this funding?
· Project objectives are to be self-funding.
3.1.28 Can the District provide annual operational hours for the Stadium and Fieldhouse at Northeast HS to use in our analysis?
· The field house and stadium are not part of the project scope
3.1.29 Will it be possible to visit the stadium at night while lights are in operation to verify existing site conditions?
· The field house and stadium are not part of the project scope
3.1.30 How does the District purchase electric supply? Who does the District use for electric procurement?
· The District purchases wholesale from the regional grid authority in fixed blocks. The Districts’ internal procurement department oversees acquisition. 
3.1.31 How does the District purchase natural gas supply? Who does the District use for natural gas procurement?
· The District purchases wholesale from suppliers in fixed blocks. The Districts’ internal procurement department oversees acquisition. 
3.1.32 Can the District provide a copy of a current utility bill for each school including: electric (supply), natural gas (delivery & supply), and water (supply & sewage if billed separately)?
· Additional utility data has been posted to the website under addendum #2.
3.1.33 Should the utility baselines from the three schools be adjusted, if necessary, based on site visit observations?
· No adjustments to baseline should be made during the RFP phase. Adjustments, pending technical review may be considered in the next phase. Bidder may state any adjustments they believe will be required in the next phase based on field observations. 
3.1.34 Please clarify the term “contract dollar amount” associated with DBE participation value (page 5 in RFP).
·       The contract dollar amount is intended to represent the total sell price of the project. However, the O&P, construction management fees and contingencies directly related to the SDB subcontractors work can be included as part of the percentage.
3.1.35 Please clarify how DBE percentages are calculated above the minimum 35% level for section 4 of Appendix D, Evaluation Criteria and Points? Are the additional points for exceeding the MDB requirements by the percentage increments noted 4.b, 4.c, and 4.d based on the 35% MDB goal or the full 100% scale? For instance in order to qualify for the 10 additional points for 4.b (Exceeds MDB requirements by 10%) would the contract dollar amount have to exceed 38.5% (35%*1.1 = 38.5%) or would the contract dollar amount have to exceed 45% (35% + 10%)?
·         The intent was the latter; 10% increase in the contract dollar amount commitment, not a 10% increase to the base participation percentage. i.e. 45% in the example above. 

3.1.36 Can reflected ceiling plans be provided for the three schools?
· Reflected ceiling plans are not available for the three schools
3.1.37 May we provide electronic copies of our Annual Report and our sample comprehensive energy audit as they are large documents?
· Yes. 
3.1.38 Does the District use a computer power management system in the three high schools? If not, can the District provide the number of desktop and laptop computers in each high school?
· The District does not use a computer power management system in the three high schools. Accurate numbers of desktop and laptop computers in each school is not available.
3.1.39 Minimum Qualifications / Proposed Maintenance Contract: On RFP page 17 (language is below), do you want a proposed maintenance contract for this project or do you want maintenance contracts for the 5 clients that have completed a contract of similar scope in the last 7 years?
· The District is not requesting maintenance contracts on existing systems as part of your RFP proposal at this time. 
3.1.40 What is the total occupancy of each building in terms of number of students and number of staff/faculty?
· Northeast HS: 3,370 students, 220 Staff
· Strawberry Mansion HS: 303 students, 50 Staff
· Saul HS: 505 students, 65 Staff
3.1.41 What are the occupied hours during a normal school week?  Any weekend activities?
· Refer to 3.1.11

3.1.42 What are the occupied months of the year (ie Is there summer school)?
· September through June, refer to 3.1.11 for addition information.
3.1.43 What is the date of the Northeast High School steam trap survey that was provided?
· The Northeast High School steam trap data provided as part of addendum #1 is a trap replacement schedule not a survey. This work was completed on June 11, 2017 and represents approximately 80% of the total traps at that location. 
3.1.44 Are there steam trap surveys available for Strawberry Mansion HS and Saul HS that can be provided?
· No traps survey data is available for Strawberry Mansion HS or Saul HS.
3.1.45 Please provide roof age, roof submittals and warranty information on roofs, roof manufacturer information.
· No warranties data is available 

· Northeast HS: Entire roof replaced 2002

· Saul HS: 

· Agriculture building roof replaced 1998

· Remaining building roofs in excess of 20 years 

· Strawberry Mansion HS: 

· Strawberry Mansion single story entrance wing roof in excess of 20 years

· Strawberry Mansion five story wing roof replaced in 2002

· Strawberry Mansion auditorium and gymnasium roofs replaced in 1999

· LP Hill roof in excess of 30 years
3.1.46 If available, please provide Architectural Floor Plans & Elevations
· Existing drawings architectural floor plans and elevations for Northeast, Saul and Strawberry Mansion High Schools are not current and will not be provided. 
3.1.47 If available, please provide Mechanical Plans.
· Existing mechanical drawings for Northeast and Strawberry Mansion High Schools are not current and will not be provided. Existing mechanical drawings for the Saul High School were provided as part of addendum #1.
3.1.48 If available, please provide Roof Structural Drawings
· Existing roof structural drawings for Northeast, Saul and Strawberry Mansion High Schools are not current and will not be provided. 
3.1.49 If available, please provide Electrical Drawings, Electrical Single Line Service Entrance Diagram & Electrical Riser Diagrams
· Existing drawings electrical drawings for Northeast, Saul and Strawberry Mansion High Schools are not current and will not be provided. 
3.1.50 Are any areas of the schools irrigated? If so please identify including the gross area.
· None of the pilot schools are equipped with irrigation systems. 

3.1.51 What are the total number of computers in each HS?
· That information is not available. 

3.1.52 What is the percent of the building that is heated?
· That information should be obtain by survey.

3.1.53 What is the percent of the building that is cooled?
· That information should be obtain by survey.

3.1.54 If available, please provide existing trend data for mechanical equipment
· Existing trend data for mechanical equipment in not available.

3.1.55 What type of fuel oil is used in each school?
· Number two fuel oil.

3.1.56 If available, please provide electronic copies of mechanical equipment maintenance logs
· Mechanical equipment maintenance logs are not available.

3.1.57 Please provide the electric energy commodity bills for the same period as the PECO distribution bills provided in the RFP for all three schools.
· Additional utility data has been posted to the website under addendum #2.

3.1.58 Please provide copies of the Natural Gas distribution bills for each school.
· Additional utility data has been posted to the website under addendum #2. 
3.1.59 Please provide copies of the Water and Sewer bills for each school.
· Additional utility data has been posted to the website under addendum #2.

3.1.60 Please provide 1 year of boiler make-up water meter readings for all boiler plants.
· Boiler make-up water meter readings are not available.
3.1.61 Per Section VIII. Proposal Format and Contents, pages 22-28 of the pdf, the Appendices are listed in the order of "Organizational Chart, Resumes of Key Personnel, and Other relevant documentation" yet in sub-section A-1, resumes are requested to be labeled as "Exhibit 1" and organizational chart as "Exhibit 2," which labelling system and order should we provide this information to SDP? Should the resumes or organizational chart come first?
· Refer to 1.1.4.

END OF ADDENDUM #002
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